
 

 
Agenda No. 2012–14 July 23, 2012 Page 1 of 4 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO.2012–14 

REGULAR MEETING July 23,2012 
FAIRBANKSCITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
I 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for Public 

Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to speak needs to 
complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards of decorum and courtesy 
should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should be directed to the City Council as 
a body rather than to any particular Council Member or member of the staff.  In 
consideration of others, kindly silence all cell phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member so 
requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 

*a) Regular Meeting Minutes of July 09, 2012 
 
 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

a) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Liquor License 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 1 of 93



 

 
Agenda No. 2012–14 July 23, 2012 Page 2 of 4 

Application for Transfer and Restaurant Designation Permit.  Public 
Testimony will be taken and limited to five (5) minutes.   

 
 Transfer of Ownership, Location and Name Change: 

 Type: Beverage Dispensary 
 License: Gallantino’s Italian Restaurant, #4720 
 Licensee/Applicant: Gallantino’s, Inc. 
 Physical Location  1446 S. Cushman Street, Fairbanks 

 Current DBA: Trapper’s Tavern 
 Licensee: Taco Azteca, Inc. 
 Location: No Premises 

 
b) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 

interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Liquor License 
Application for Transfer.  Public Testimony will be taken and limited to five 
(5) minutes.   

 
 Transfer of Ownership (Parent Company) and Name Change: 

 Type: Wholesale 
 License: Southern Wine & Spirits of Alaska, #4858 
 Licensee/Applicant: Southern-Odom Wine & Spirits of Alaska, LLC 
 Physical Location  1200 Wells Street, Bay 2, Fairbanks 

 Current DBA: Southern-Odom Wine & Spirits of Alaska 
 Current Licensee: Southern-Odom Wine & Spirits of Alaska, LLC 
 Current Location: 1200 Wells Street, Bay 2, Fairbanks 

 
c) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 

interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Liquor License 
Application for Transfer.  Public Testimony will be taken and limited to five 
(5) minutes.   

 
 Transfer of Ownership (Parent Company) and Name Change: 

 Type: Wholesale 
 License: Southern Wine & Spirits of Alaska, #4862 
 Licensee/Applicant: Southern-Odom Wine & Spirits of Alaska, LLC 
 Physical Location  3101 Peger Road, Bay 2, Fairbanks 

 Current DBA: Southern-Odom Wine & Spirits of Alaska 
 Current Licensee: Southern-Odom Wine & Spirits of Alaska, LLC 
 Current Location: 3101 Peger Road, Bay 2, Fairbanks 

 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
  

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 2 of 93



 

 
Agenda No. 2012–14 July 23, 2012 Page 3 of 4 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a) Ordinance  No. 5886 – An Ordinance Authorizing the Public Sale of 
Surplus City-Owned Property Known as Old City Hall.  Introduced by 
Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.  
POSTPONED from the Regular Meeting of June 25, 2012.   

 
b) Ordinance No. 5887 – An Ordinance to Amend Fairbanks General Code 

Chapter 2, Article II, Division 5, to Require a Fiscal Note for Ordinances 
and Resolutions.  Introduced by Council Member Stiver.  SECOND 
READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4536 – A Resolution Opting to Participate in the AML-JIA 
Loss Control Incentive Program for the City of Fairbanks.  Introduced by 
Mayor Cleworth.   

 
*b) Resolution No. 4537 – A Resolution in Support of a Large Diameter 

Natural Gas Pipeline to Tidewater at Valdez, Alaska.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.   

 
*c) Resolution No. 4538 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to 

Apply for a Municipal Matching Grant from the Alaska Department of 
Environmental Conservation for a Sludge Dewatering Project at the City-
Owned Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

 
*d) Resolution No. 4539 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to 

Request Funds from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security for the 
FFY2012 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) 
Grant.  Introduced by Council Member Eberhart.   

 
*e) Ordinance No. 5888 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code 

Chapter 26 Regarding Alarms.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   
 

*f) Ordinance No. 5889 – An Ordinance Seeking Voter Approval for the City 
to Accept a Pass-Through Loan from the Alaska Clean Water Fund to 
Golden Heart Utilities of up to $4.6256 Million for a Sludge Dewatering 
Project, up to $650,623 for a Clarifier Project, and Ratifying a Loan of 
$637,830 for Prior Improvements at the City-Owned Wastewater Treatment 
Facility.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT) 
 

Committee Reports 
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 3 of 93



 

 
Agenda No. 2012–14 July 23, 2012 Page 4 of 4 

 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

*a) Local Improvement District Committee Meeting Minutes of June 29, 2012 
 

*b) Local Improvement District Committee Meeting Minutes of July 9, 2012 
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 4 of 93



 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, JULY 9, 2012 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 
The City Council convened at 7:00 p.m. on the above date, to conduct a Regular Meeting of the 
Fairbanks City Council at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, 
with Mayor Jerry Cleworth presiding and with the following Council Members in attendance: 
 
Council Members Present: Vivian Stiver, Seat A 

Chad Roberts, Seat B 
Bernard Gatewood, Seat C 
Jim Matherly, Seat D 
Lloyd Hilling, Seat E 
John Eberhart, Seat F 
 

Absent: None 
 

Also Present: Clem Clooten, Building Official 
Warren Cummings, Fire Chief 
Paul Ewers, City Attorney 
Janey Hovenden, City Clerk 
Tony C. Shumate, Director Personnel/Purchasing/RM 
Laren Zager, Police Chief 
 

INVOCATION 
 
The Invocation was given by City Clerk Janey Hovenden. 
 
FLAG SALUTATION 
 
Mayor Cleworth led the Flag Salutation. 
 
CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 
 
Lance Roberts, PO Box 83449, Fairbanks – Mr. Roberts spoke in favor of the City divesting 
itself of surplus properties, stating his hope that the City gets fair values from sales.  He 
cautioned that if care is not taken in those property sales, it could bring a bad repute upon the 
City.  Mr. Roberts spoke to the parking problem at the Marriott Hotel/Lavelle’s Bistro.  He 
suggested that the cut-off for downtown parking be changed from 6 P.M. to 5 P.M. in order to 
encourage more people to come into the City in the evening.  Mr. Roberts spoke in support of 
Ordinance No. 5887. 
 
Mr. Hilling asked for clarification on the intent of Mr. Roberts’ suggestion for an earlier cut-off 
time for parking.   
 
Mr. Roberts stated that parking downtown should be free after business hours.   

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 5 of 93



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 09, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 11 

 
Mayor Cleworth thanked Mr. Roberts for stepping forward and filing as a candidate for the 
FNSB Assembly.   
 
Dan Gogerty, 2406 Mercier Street, Fairbanks – Mr. Gogerty addressed the Council concerning 
his vehicle that was impounded by the City while he was on a military deployment.  He stated 
that a friend had driven the vehicle, which was not registered or insured.  He explained that the 
vehicle is not worth as much as the impound fees and pleaded with the Council to reduce the 
fees.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked Mr. Gogerty if he was deployed to a battle zone and what his job during the 
deployment entailed.   
 
Mr. Gogerty replied that he is a civilian mechanic for the Stryker Brigade at Fort Wainwright.   
 
Mr. Matherly asked Mr. Gogerty to clarify the value of the impounded vehicle.  He stated that it 
is his understanding that the Mayor had already reduced the impound fees.  He inquired as to the 
time of the impound and to Mr. Gogerty’s communication with his friend while he was 
deployed.   
 
Mr. Gogerty replied that the car is worth about $500.00 and that Mayor Cleworth had reduced 
the fees to $650.00.  He stated that the seizure just took place about a month ago and that he was 
at Fort Lewis at the time.  He added that he had returned to Fairbanks three days ago.   
 
Mr. Eberhart asked for clarification on why the vehicle had Washington plates and how long 
the vehicle had been in Alaska.  He asked Mr. Gogerty if he had driven the vehicle since he 
brought it to Alaska.   
 
Mr. Gogerty explained that he brought the car here in 2008 and that he had not driven the vehicle 
in Alaska.  He stated that his friend was taking care of his apartment while he was out of town 
and had access to the vehicle’s keys.  He stated that he’d rather not take legal action against his 
friend.   
 
Frank Turney, 201 Seventh Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Turney spoke in support of reducing 
Mr. Gogerty’s impound fees.  He gave an update on the resolution that was passed opposing the 
National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA).  He stated that Senator Coghill will be working on 
a bill to block the enforcement of the NDAA, Sections 1021 and 1022, and possibly a state 
nullification bill.   
 
Victor Buberge, PO Box 58192, Fairbanks – Mr. Buberge apologized to the Council and stated 
that he wouldn’t complain about the potholes on Illinois Street because he recently learned that 
the area is maintained by the State of Alaska, not the City.  He commended whomever was 
responsible for the beautiful landscaping and care of the lawn in front of City Hall.  He spoke to 
the need for public restrooms in the downtown area.  Mr. Buberge spoke against the City’s 
procurement of grant funding, stating that the money is not free and that the grants put our 
country deeper in debt.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 6 of 93



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 09, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 11 

David Lerman, 126 Second Avenue, #15, Fairbanks – Mr. Lerman stated his intent to run for 
City Council in the 2012 Municipal Election.  He spoke to his website, Renovation Fairbanks.  
He recommended that the City create a mission statement promoting renovation, develop a 
renovation task force and draft an ordinance to waive building permit fees for dilapidated 
properties. He spoke to other task forces that could be created to address other issues such as 
DUI’s, crime and air quality.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mr. Roberts, seconded by Mr. Gatewood, moved to APPROVE the Agenda and Consent 
Agenda. 
 

Mayor Cleworth called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
City Clerk Hovenden read the Consent Agenda into the record. 
 
APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes of June 25, 2012. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, heard interested 
citizens concerned with the below-referenced Application for a New Liquor License.   
 

  License Type:   Brewery     
  D.B.A.:      HooDoo Brewing Company, License #5169 
  Licensee/Applicant:   Fairbanks Fermentation, LLC 
  Physical Location:    1951 Fox Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 
 
Mr. Roberts, seconded by Mr. Matherly, moved to WAIVE Protest on the Application for a 
New Liquor License.   
 
Mayor Cleworth called for Public Testimony. 
 
Frank Turney – Mr. Turney stated that the liquor license should be treated like others that have 
come before and that a Certificate of Occupancy should be required prior to the business 
opening.   
 
Bobby Wilken, PO Box 71343, Fairbanks – Mr. Wilken, owner of the HooDoo Brewing 
Company, stated that his would be the first brewery in the City of Fairbanks since the Pioneer 
Brewery closed in 1942.  He described the layout of his brewery and stated that its construction 
is about 99% complete.  He explained that the front portion of the brewery will have a tap room 
where customers can observe the brewing process and sample beers.  He stated that the tap room 
is roughly 85% complete, but would be finished in about a month when the beer is ready for 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 7 of 93



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 09, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 11 

consumption.  He asked the Council to waive protest on the liquor license so that he could begin 
brewing as soon as possible.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked if the tap room is for sampling or sales.  She asked for clarification on the type 
of liquor license for which Mr. Wilken had applied.   
 
Mr. Wilken replied that sales and sampling will both take place in the tap room.  He explained 
that the liquor license is a brewery license, which would allow him to brew, sell and make beer 
available for consumption on-site.  He added that there are limitations on consumption and that 
they must stop serving by 8 P.M. under the regulations of a brewery license.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked what the general response from neighboring businesses and property owners 
has been towards the opening of the brewery. 
 
Mr. Wilken replied that the response has been positive.   
 
Mr. Roberts asked when the next ABC Board Meeting would take place. 
 
Mr. Wilken stated that their next meeting is tomorrow. 
 
Mr. Roberts inquired as to how long Mr. Wilken would have to wait before the next ABC 
Board Meeting if his license was protested and did not go through at tomorrow’s meeting.   
 
Mr. Wilken guessed that it would be a couple months before their next meeting. 
 
Mr. Matherly asked on what date Mr. Wilken would open for business if his liquor license was 
already approved.   
 
Mr. Wilken replied that he would be ready to open in roughly a month if his license was 
approved.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked what the capacity of the tap room is. 
 
Mr. Wilken stated that the capacity is 68.   
 
Mr. Gatewood asked Mr. Wilken to explain the problem with waiting for a Certificate of 
Occupancy before beginning brewing.   
 
Mr. Wilken explained that he is working from a checklist and the liquor license is just one more 
thing to check off before opening.   
 
Mr. Roberts asked for clarification on Mr. Wilken’s plan of action if the Council votes to waive 
protest.   
 
Mr. Wilken replied that his plan is to use only the brewery portion of the building until a good 
stock of beer is available for sale and until the tap room is finished and ready for business.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 8 of 93



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 09, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 11 

Mr. Eberhart inquired as to the significance of the Certificate of Occupancy.  He asked if the 
certificate was only for the purpose of opening to the public.   
 
Mr. Wilken clarified that the Certificate of Occupancy would be needed not only to open the tap 
room, but also to occupy the brewing space.   
 
Mr. Eberhart asked about the likelihood of obtaining a temporary liquor license from the ABC 
Board. 
 
Mr. Wilken replied that he has been told there’s a good chance that the ABC Board would grant 
him a temporary liquor license until the next meeting.   
 
Mayor Cleworth stated that the City Building Department is protesting the HooDoo Brewery 
Liquor License and that the normal procedure is for the Council to protest contingent upon the 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  He asked Mr. Wilken what his projected timeline was 
for completing construction to the Building Department’s satisfaction.   
 
Mr. Wilken replied that it would take a couple more weeks to complete the brewery portion.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked if a temporary liquor license from the ABC Board allows for both brewing 
and tasting.  
 
Mr. Wilken replied that it does.   
 
Mr. Lerman – Mr. Lerman spoke to the public’s concern with the use of alcohol in the City of 
Fairbanks and to alcohol abuse.  He spoke to the heavy alcohol content of beer manufactured in 
breweries and cautioned the Council on increasing the saturation level in Fairbanks. 
 
Mr. Matherly asked Mr. Lerman if he had discussed the brewery with Mr. Wilken.  He stated 
that Mr. Lerman had made many assumptions about the brewery business.   
 
Mr. Lerman replied that he had not spoken with Mr. Wilken about the brewery.  He stated his 
opinion that the brewery is a “recipe for disaster.”   
 
Victor Buberge – Mr. Buberge wished success to Mr. Wilken and suggested that he offer free 
beer the opening week.   
 
Mayor Cleworth made a final call for Public Testimony and, hearing none, declared Public 
Testimony closed. 
 
Mr. Eberhart requested that Mr. Wilken come forward again to discuss the alcohol content of 
the brewed beer.   
 
Mr. Matherly indicated that it may not be a good idea to ask Mr. Wilken for details about the 
alcohol content or the brewing process.  He stated that the Council doesn’t question other 
business owners when they open a new business.   
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 9 of 93



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 09, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 11 

Mr. Hilling spoke in favor of having Mr. Wilken speak to the alcohol content.   
 
Mr. Gatewood stated that he is indifferent as to what the alcohol content of the brew is.   
 
Mr. Roberts stated that the Council routinely waives protest on liquor stores who sell liquor 
with 50% alcohol content.  
 
Ms. Stiver asked Mr. Ewers and Ms. Hovenden if the discussion was inappropriate. 
 
Mr. Ewers replied that, generally, the discussion is relevant. 
 
Mr. Wilken stated that standard light beer is about 4.2% alcohol, standard premium beer is about 
4.5% alcohol, and the average American craft beer is roughly 5% alcohol.  He explained that 
beers brewed at small craft breweries can range up to 12% alcohol content, but that the majority 
of his beers will stay in line with the average craft beer as far as alcohol content is concerned.  
He clarified that they are classified as “craft” beers because they are not made with corn or rice.  
He indicated that problems with alcohol abuse are generally not associated with craft beers 
because they are a higher-end product.   
 
Mr. Gatewood asked if Mr. Wilken planned to brew beers with the higher alcohol content.  
 
Mr. Wilken replied that he would be brewing specialty beers for holidays only.   
 
Mr. Eberhart commended Mr. Wilken on his efforts and expense toward opening a brewery in 
Fairbanks.   
 
Mr. Roberts asked how the ABC Board differentiates between a Temporary and a Permanent 
Certificate of Occupancy.  He spoke in support of waiving protest so that the liquor license could 
be considered by the ABC Board at tomorrow’s meeting.   
 
Ms. Hovenden stated that they do not differentiate between the two certificates.  She indicated 
that the HooDoo Brewing Company’s Liquor License was not even being considered at the ABC 
Board’s meeting the next day.   
 
Mayor Cleworth spoke to the City’s procedures in regards to liquor licenses and to the 
importance of being consistent.   
 
Mr. Matherly spoke to the differences between a brewery license and a dispensary license.   
 
Mr. Eberhart asked Ms. Hovenden if the HooDoo Brewing Company’s license would not be 
considered by the ABC Board until their meeting a couple months away.   
 
Ms. Hovenden stated that that is her understanding.  She stated that Mr. Wilken may be able to 
work out a temporary agreement with the ABC Board in the meantime.   
 
Mr. Hilling stated that he will support a motion to protest, contingent upon a Certificate of 
Occupancy.   

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 10 of 93



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 09, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 11 

 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO WAIVE PROTEST ON THE 
HOODOO BREWING COMPANY APPLICATION FOR A NEW LIQUOR LICENSE, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Roberts 
NAYS: Stiver, Matherly, Gatewood, Hilling, Eberhart 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION FAILED. 

 
Mr. Eberhart, seconded by Mr. Hilling, moved to PROTEST the Application for a New Liquor 
License, contingent upon issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy from the City Building 
Department. 
 
Mr. Roberts asked for clarification on how the ABC Board views Temporary versus Permanent 
Certificates of Occupancy. 
 
Ms. Hovenden explained that the ABC Board sees “Protest” or “No Protest,” not Certificates of 
Occupancy.    
 
Ms. Stiver spoke to consistency in the Liquor License hearing process.  She stated that a protest 
does not mean that the Council does not support Mr. Wilkes’ business.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO PROTEST THE HOODOO 
BREWING COMPANY APPLICATION FOR A NEW LIQUOR LICENSE, CONTINGENT 
UPON THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FROM THE CITY 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Hilling, Eberhart, Roberts, Stiver, Matherly, Gatewood 
NAYS: None 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
MAYOR’S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
Mayor Cleworth stated that he met with a group called the Alaska Natural Gas Pipeline 
Coalition.  He stated that the coalition was hoping to get a resolution of support for the large-
diameter pipeline from the Fairbanks City Council to take to the Governor later in the month.  He 
stated that, unfortunately, there will not be enough time to pass a resolution and asked the 
Council if they would be willing to provide the coalition with a letter of support.  He spoke 
briefly to the large-diameter pipeline project.  He stated that he would prepare a draft resolution 
for the Council to review.  Mayor Cleworth thanked Mr. Buberge for his comments regarding 
the front lawn of City Hall.  He stated that Festival Fairbanks maintains all the flowers and Joe, a 
Public Works employee, does a great job maintaining the lawn.  He spoke to the on-going 
construction work on Riverside Drive, Tok Street and Talkeetna Avenue.  He stated that the City 
will be going out to bid within a couple weeks on the Graehl Subdivision in hopes of completion 
by winter.  Mayor Cleworth asked the Council to address Mr. Gogerty’s impound fees during 
their comments.  He stated that the vehicle was impounded on June 12, 2012, while Mr. Gogerty 
was out of state.  He explained that the impound fees totaled $1175 at the time Mr. Gogerty 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 11 of 93



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 09, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 11 

protested and that he had already reduced the total to $650.  Mayor Cleworth stated that the 
reduction was not satisfactory to Mr. Gogerty and that’s why he has appealed to the Council.   
 
Ms. Stiver asked if it would be solely up to Mr. Gogerty to claim any damages against the 
individual who drove the vehicle.   
 
Mayor Cleworth replied affirmatively.   
 
Mr. Gatewood asked how Mayor Cleworth arrived at $650 as a reduced cost.   
 
Mayor Cleworth replied that the cost is roughly half of the original fees and that there is no 
other mathematical reason as to why he arrived at that number.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
a) Resolution No. 4534 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to Request Funds 

from the Alaska Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management Under the 
FY2012 Homeland Security Grant Program.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

 
  PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
b) Resolution No. 4535 – A Resolution Awarding a Contract to Samson Electric, Inc., for 

the City Hall Standby Generator & UPS System Project in the Amount of $382,362.  
Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

 
  PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
c) Ordinance No. 5887 – An Ordinance to Amend Fairbanks General Code Chapter 2, 

Article II, Division 5, to Require a Fiscal Note for Ordinances and Resolutions.  
Introduced by Council Member Stiver.   

 
  ADVANCED on the CONSENT AGENDA.   
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 Committee Reports 
 
Local Improvement District (LID) Ad-hoc Committee – Ms. Stiver gave a brief description of 
the Committee’s purpose and a summary of the discussion at the meeting on July 6, 2012.  She 
announced that meetings are held at 8:15 A.M. on Fridays.  She shared the names of Committee 
members and stated that there is still one vacant seat.   
 
COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
 Chena Riverfront Commission Meeting Minutes of May 7, 2012. 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.   

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 12 of 93



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 09, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 11 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Matherly wished Mr. Wilkes the best of luck with his new business.  He spoke in favor of 
reducing Mr. Gogerty’s impound fees to the towing fee only.  Mr. Matherly spoke to the 
incredible turnout at the Armed Services YMCA Father/Daughter Ball that he attends annually.  
He stated that it is an honor to serve on the City Council.   
 
Mr. Matherly, seconded by Mr. Roberts, moved to reduce Mr. Gogerty’s impound fees to 
$135.   
 
Mr. Roberts asked which fees would be waived by reducing the total to $135. 
 
Mayor Cleworth replied that the administrative and storage fees would be waived if the motion 
carried.   
 
Mr. Gatewood stated that he would not support reducing the fees past $650.   
 
Mr. Eberhart spoke to maintaining consistency in all issues that are presented to the Council.  
He stated that Mr. Gogerty’s situation is unfortunate, but that he believes the $650 is a 
reasonable offer.   
 
Mr. Eberhart, seconded by Ms. Stiver, moved to AMEND the motion to reduce Mr. Gogerty’s 
impound fees by changing the total fees to $650.   
 
Mr. Hilling asked for clarification on the purpose of the amendment if the original offer to 
Mr. Gogerty was the same.   
 
Mayor Cleworth explained that, since there was a motion to reduce fees to $135, Mr. Eberhart’s 
motion was appropriate.   
 
Ms. Stiver spoke in support of the amendment, stating that the Council has addressed similar 
issues in the past in the same manner.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO AMEND THE MAIN MOTION 
BY CHANGING THE TOTAL TO $650, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Gatewood, Eberhart, Stiver, Cleworth 
NAYS: Roberts, Matherly, Hilling 
Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO REDUCE MR. GOGERTY’S 
IMPOUND FEES, AS AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Eberhart, Gatewood, Stiver, Hilling 
NAYS: Matherly, Roberts 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 13 of 93



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 09, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 11 

Mayor Cleworth declared the MOTION CARRIED and 
Mr. Gogerty’s impound fees to total $650. 

 
Mr. Hilling stated that he is on the cusp of agreeing with jury nullification, but that he would 
like to hear more arguments against it before he decides.  He spoke further to the issue of jury 
nullification.  Mr. Hilling spoke to his duty as a Council Member to represent the Fairbanks 
citizens and the care that must be taken when considering the waiving of fees.  He addressed 
Mr. Lerman’s testimony against the HooDoo Liquor License and stated his belief that it is not 
the City’s job to deny the brewery a license for the sake of minimizing the alcohol saturation in 
Fairbanks.  Mr. Hilling commented that the Clay Street Cemetery looks very nice and 
commended Mr. Turney for his work.  He spoke to Mr. Buberge’s testimony in regards to the 
public restroom issue and grant funding.  He stated that he will continue to look in to a solution 
for public restrooms.  He discussed grant funding for the City and stated that he may consider 
voting against applying for and accepting future federal grant funding. 
 
Mr. Eberhart expressed his sympathy for the passing of Michelle Roberts.  He thanked the 
Mayor for his work with the Tiger Team and the movement of the F-16’s from EAFB to JBER.  
He announced that the Public Safety Commission will me at the Fire Department on July 10, 
2012, at 11:30 A.M.  He stated that only the voting members will be in attendance and the they 
will discuss the future roles and responsibilities of the Commission.   
 
Mr. Gatewood reminded the Mayor and Council that he will not attend the next regular meeting.  
He spoke in support of Ordinance No. 5887, to require a fiscal note for ordinances and 
resolutions.   
 
Mr. Roberts spoke to the long deliberation on the HooDoo Liquor License.  He stated that, 
while the Council typically protests new licenses contingent upon a Certificate of Occupancy, he 
believes the Council may be becoming complacent on how businesses are treated.  He spoke to 
the high cost of building and renovating in the City of Fairbanks versus outside the City limits 
and cautioned the Council on keeping that in mind for future considerations.  Mr. Roberts stated 
that the City of Fairbanks should be more accommodating for new businesses.  He commented 
that he has received complaints about the Building Department and, while the Council cannot 
micromanage the staff, he believes there is a need to understand how important new businesses 
are to the community.  Mr. Roberts addressed Chief Zager regarding a problem with youth 
congregating on the Wendell Street Bridge, which is causing a problem with traffic flow.  He 
stated that the problem is compounded by the fact that Wendell Street is the main thoroughfare to 
downtown from the north side due to the construction on Illinois Street.   
 
Ms. Stiver announced that the memorial for Michelle Roberts will be held at the Golden Heart 
Plaza on July 25 from 5:30 to 8:00 P.M.  She sympathized with Mr. Gogerty’s situation with the 
impounded vehicle, but stated that she believes the Council’s decision was fair.  She spoke to 
accommodating new businesses in the City of Fairbanks and suggested that one solution could be 
to look into a partial exemption in Borough taxes.  Ms. Stiver commented on the gorgeous 
summer weather. 
 
Mayor Cleworth, in response to Mr. Roberts’ comments, stated that the City’s Building Code 
Review & Appeals Commission and the Landscape Review & Appeals Commission are both 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 14 of 93



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 09, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 11 of 11 

staffed by peers in the profession.  He stated that the Building Code Commission sets high 
standards for the in the City limits.  He gave Clem Clooten credit for helping eliminate the 
Beautification Commission.  He suggested that the landscape and beautification portion of the 
code may need to be looked at and possibly amended because it is so restrictive.  Mayor 
Cleworth spoke to the significant influence the Building Department has on annexation 
decisions made by the Local Boundary Commission.  He stated that the Council needs to 
constantly look at the City’s rules and regulations to ensure fairness to its citizens.  He added that 
the City of Fairbanks’ mill rate is low compared to other municipalities and the tax structure is 
very stable.   
 
Mr. Roberts expressed appreciation for Mayor Cleworth’s comments.  He agreed that the City’s 
tax structure is stable and that tax rates are low.  He stated that the Council needs to be mindful 
that the cost of energy and the cost to do business in Fairbanks is much higher than in other 
communities.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Matherly, seconded by Mr. Gatewood, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. 
 

Mayor Cleworth called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 
Mayor Cleworth declared the Meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JERRY CLEWORTH, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, CITY CLERK 
 
Transcribed by:  DS 
  
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 15 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 16 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 17 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 18 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 19 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 20 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 21 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 22 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 23 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 24 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 25 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 26 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 27 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 28 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 29 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 30 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 31 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 32 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 33 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 34 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 35 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 36 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 37 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 38 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 39 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 40 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 41 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 42 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 43 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 44 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 45 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 46 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 47 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 48 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 49 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 50 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 51 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 52 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 53 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 54 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 55 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 56 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 57 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 58 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 59 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 60 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 61 of 93



Ordinance No. 5886 
Page 1 of 2 

      Introduced By:  Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
           Date:  June 25, 2012 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5886 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PUBLIC SALE OF SURPLUS 
CITY-OWNED PROPERTY KNOWN AS OLD CITY HALL 

 
 WHEREAS, the City is vested with title to that certain building located at 410 
Cushman Street, commonly known as the “Old City Hall,” comprising a portion of lot 
4, Block 66A, Fairbanks Townsite, as shown on attached “Exhibit A”; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City administration has reviewed said property and 
determined that it is no longer needed for municipal purposes and should be sold; 
and  
  
 WHEREAS, the City administration, through valuation by an independent real 
estate appraiser, has estimated the market value of the property at a minimum of 
$180,000, and recommends that amount as the asking price; and  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
  

 SECTION 1. DETERMINATION: That said property is excess to 
the present and future needs of the City and should be sold as herein 
provided. 
  
 SECTION 2 PERMISSIVE REFERENDUM:  Any conveyance of 
real property is subject to the right of the voters, within thirty-days of 
sale, to reject a sale by permissive referendum under FGC Sec. 70-42, 
and the City Charter.  

 
 SECTION 3. METHOD OF SALE:  That the provisions of FGC 
Sections 70-52 through 70-54 shall be complied with in this sale. 
Offers shall be presented in writing to the Clerk for consideration by the 
City Council.  
 

SECTION 4. TERMS OF SALE: That said property is for sale on 
a sealed bid, cash basis, as-is, where is, for any bids received by the 
published date of sale.  If unsold after the published date of sale, the 
City Council may entertain negotiated offers, including “owner 
financing”.    

 
 SECTION 5. MAYORS AUTHORIZATION:  That the Mayor is 
hereby authorized and empowered to execute a deed and such 
instruments as necessary to complete the sale of said property after 
Council approval. 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 62 of 93



Ordinance No. 5886 
Page 2 of 2 

 SECTION 6:  That the effective date of this ordinance shall be 
the 14th day of July 2012. 

 
 
                                                                              
                JERRY CLEWORTH, Mayor 
 
 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED: 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                     
JANEY HOVENDEN, City Clerk   PAUL EWERS, City Attorney 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 63 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 64 of 93



      Introduced by: Council Member Stiver 
Finance Committee Review: July 3, 2012 

         Date: July 9, 2012   
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5887 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE II, DIVISION 5, TO REQUIRE A FISCAL NOTE 

FOR ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

 WHEREAS, the State of Alaska and many municipalities require fiscal notes to 
accompany proposed legislation; and  

 
WHEREAS, fiscal notes are a great aid to a legislative body considering legislation that 

has financial consequences; and 
 
WHEREAS, fiscal notes provide the public with valuable information and promote open 

and responsible government; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, AS FOLLOWS:   
  
Section 1. That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 5, is hereby amended 
to add Section 2-149 as follows: 
 

Sec. 2-149. Fiscal note on ordinances and resolutions. 
 
  (a) A summary of the financial effects of an ordinance or a resolution, if 
adopted, in the form set out in subsection (b), must be submitted to the council 
when a proposed ordinance or resolution is before the council for final 
consideration.   
 
  (b) The fiscal note of an ordinance or a resolution includes: 
 
 (1) changes in expenditures; 
 (2) changes in revenue; 
 (3) the source of funds to be used; 

(4) the number of new positions which may be required, identified as 
full-time, part-time, or temporary; and 

(5) any additional fiscal information that may be useful to the council 
in its deliberations. 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 65 of 93



Ordinance No. 5887 
Page 2 

 
  (c) The fiscal note should cover the financial effects for the full term of the 
contract or grant.     
 
  (d) A fiscal note is not required if the proposed ordinance or resolution has no 
budgetary effect. 
 
  (e) The city council may waive the requirements of this section, and failure to 
comply with this section does not invalidate any action taken by the council.   

 

Section 2. That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the ____ day of ________ 2012.   

 

 

             
      Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk  Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 66 of 93



Ordinance or Resolution No:

Abbreviated Title:

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes No

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No

(F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

Current FY Second FY Third FY Beyond Total

Supplies

Current FY Second FY Third FY Beyond Total

Capital Fund

In-Kind Match

Initial Date

State Grant

Local Contract

Cash Match

Other

TOTAL

CITY OF FAIRBANKS

FISCAL NOTE

If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions?

Personnel Benefits

Reviewed by Finance Department:

If yes, what is the estimate?

I. REQUEST:

II. FINANCIAL DETAIL:

Personnel Wages

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES

Contractual

Equipment

Administration

Other

TOTAL

ESTIMATED FUNDING SOURCES

General Fund

Federal Grant

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 67 of 93



 Introduced by:  Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
                Date: July 23, 2012 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4536 
 

A RESOLUTION OPTING TO PARTICIPATE IN THE AML-JIA LOSS 
CONTROL INCENTIVE PROGRAM FOR THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS 

 
  WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is a member of the Alaska Municipal League 
Joint Insurance Association (hereinafter “AMLJIA”); and 
 
  WHEREAS, the AMLJIA provides comprehensive risk management assistance 
and provides workers’ compensation, liability and property coverage for the City of Fairbanks; 
and 
 
  WHEREAS, the AMLJIA developed the Loss Control Incentive Program to help 
reduce member losses individually and pool wide; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the AMLJIA will provide all written program materials necessary; 
and offer assistance to participants; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pool members that participate in the Loss Control Incentive 
Program and complete the required activities will have the opportunity to earn a discount on their 
contribution; and 
 
  WHEREAS, it is the City of Fairbanks’ policy to provide a safe environment for 
its employees, citizens, and the visiting public; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Loss Control Incentive Program will enhance such an 
environment. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE by the City Council of the 
City of Fairbanks to elect to participate in the AML/JIA Loss Control Incentive Program for the 
2012-2013 policy year. 
 
  PASSED and APPROVED on the 23rd Day of July, 2012. 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT:   
APPROVED:   
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, City Clerk, CMC    Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 68 of 93



Introduced By: Mayor Cleworth  
Date:  July 23, 2012 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 4537 

 
A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A LARGE DIAMETER NATURAL 

GAS PIPELINE TO TIDEWATER AT VALDEZ, ALASKA 
 

WHEREAS, a large-diameter gas pipeline has been discussed for over forty years and 
should be a fundamental part of the infrastructure of the State of Alaska; the North Slope to 
Valdez line has been researched extensively and takes advantage of the existing corridor; and 

 
WHEREAS, the decline in dependence on both nuclear and coal energy sources has 

resulted in a significant increase in demand for natural gas; and 
 
WHEREAS, this corridor encompasses a larger population and user base, including 

Fairbanks, Fort Wainwright, and Eielson AFB, than other potential routes; and 
 
WHEREAS, energy costs for residents in the interior and rural Alaska are staggering and 

severely limit economic growth; and 
 
WHEREAS, the only realistic answer for achieving air quality standards in Fairbanks 

would be rapid conversion to natural gas; and 
 
WHEREAS, because an all Alaskan route is strategically desirable, the City of Fairbanks 

joins with the numerous other communities who have submitted Resolutions, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fairbanks City Council supports 

the construction of a large-diameter natural gas pipeline from the North Slope to Valdez, with 
various take-off points where needed, to further the development of our natural resources.  
 

PASSED and APPROVED this ___ Day of July, 2012.   
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________   __________________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, City Clerk CMC   Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 69 of 93



 Introduced By:  Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
Finance Committee Review: July 17, 2012 

 Date:  July 23, 2012 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO 4538 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO APPLY FOR 
A MUNICIPAL MATCHING GRANT FROM THE ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION FOR A SLUDGE DEWATERING 
PROJECT AT THE CITY-OWNED WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT  

 
 

WHEREAS, under terms of the 1997 sale of the City utility system, the City 

retains ownership of the Peger Road wastewater treatment plant (the “plant”); and 

WHEREAS, Golden Heart Utilities (“GHU”) operates the wastewater treatment 

facility in accordance with the terms of a lease with the City; and 

WHEREAS, grant funding is available from the Alaska Department of 

Environmental Conservation Municipal Matching Grant Program for rehabilitation of a 

part of the plant known as the Sludge Dewatering Facility; and 

WHEREAS, the total project cost is $4,635,600 with an available grant of 

$2,775,360; and 

WHEREAS, the grant will reduce the amount of a loan to rehabilitate the sludge 

dewatering facility thus reducing the expense to rate payers; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks, by resolution, must formally apply for the grant 

and agree to the terms and conditions of the grant, and adhere to any governing state 

regulations; and 

WHEREAS, GHU has agreed to be responsible for any and all project expenses, 

to operate and maintain the completed project constructed with said grant, and to fully 

reimburse the City for expenses incurred under this grant, including staff time for 

accounting, grant administration and the audit process;  

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 70 of 93



Resolution 4538 
Page 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS, that the City Council approves application to the Alaska Department 

of Environmental Conservation Municipal Matching Grant Program in an amount that 

will not exceed $2,775,360. The Mayor is authorized to enter into an agreement with 

GHU under which GHU will be responsible for (a) all costs of the project, (b) proper use 

of grant funds, (c) operation and maintenance of the completed project constructed with 

said grant in accordance with law and regulation, and (c) reimbursement of the full costs 

of any City staff time in connection with this grant.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is also authorized to execute those 

documents necessary to implement the grant funded project and for adjustments to the 

project within the scope of the grant program.  

 
PASSED and APPROVED this ____ day of ______________ 2012. 

 
 
 

___________________________ 
JERRY CLEWORTH, MAYOR 

 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT:   
APPROVED:   
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, City Clerk PAUL J. EWERS, City Attorney 

 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 71 of 93



 Introduced By:  Council Member Eberhart  
Finance Committee Review: July 17, 2012 

 Date:  July 23, 2012 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO 4539 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO 
REQUEST FUNDS FROM THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND 

SECURITY FOR THE FFY2012 STAFFING FOR ADEQUATE FIRE AND 
EMERGENCY RESPONSE (SAFER) GRANT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks Fire Department has requested an increase in 

staffing for a number of years; and 

WHEREAS, the SAFER Grant Program will provide funding for new fire fighters 

for a period of two years and no match or retention of staff is required; and 

WHEREAS, the cost for a new fire fighter for the two year period, including all 

benefits, is $198,385; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks wishes to increase its overall staffing by two 

fire fighter positions per shift, a total of six fire fighters, for a grant request total of 

$1,190,310.00; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor is 
authorized to execute any and all documents required for requesting funds on behalf of 
the City for this project. 

  
PASSED AND APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE THIS ______ DAY OF JULY 2012. 

 
  
 
  __________________________ 
 Jerry Cleworth, City Mayor 

 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:   
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________  _________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 72 of 93



Ordinance or Resolution No: 4539

Abbreviated Title: FFY2012 SAFER Grant

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the adopted budget for 2013? Yes x No

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes No x

3) additional positions beyond the adopted budget for 2013? Yes x No

6

F   (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

2013 2014 Third FY Beyond Total

$365,970 $441,270 $807,240

$182,700 $200,370 $383,070

Supplies $3,360 $3,360 $6,720

$13,656 $10,656 $24,312

$34,194 $3,600 $37,794

$0

$6,000 $6,000 $12,000

$605,880 $665,256 $0 $0 $1,271,136

2013 2014 Third FY Beyond Total

$57,210 $23,616 $80,826

Capital Fund $0

$548,670 $641,640 $1,190,310

$0

$0

$0

In-Kind Match $0

$0

$605,880 $665,256 $0 $0 $1,271,136

Initial mb Date 7/18/2012

State Grant

Local Contract

Cash Match

Other

TOTAL

CITY OF FAIRBANKS

FISCAL NOTE

     If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions?

Personnel Benefits

Reviewed by Finance Department:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

I.  REQUEST:

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:

Personnel Wages

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES

Contractual

Equipment

Administration

Other (Training)

TOTAL

ESTIMATED FUNDING SOURCES

General Fund

Federal Grant

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 73 of 93



Sponsored by: Mayor Cleworth  
Introduced: July 23, 2012 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 5888 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE CHAPTER 
26 REGARDING ALARMS 

 
 WHEREAS, in Chapter 26, Article II, of the Fairbanks General Code, the City adopted 
regulations governing the connection of private alarm systems to the City’s alarm circuit; and 
 

 WHEREAS, since the adoption of this section of the code, changes have been made to 
the standards for such alarms; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the different requirements for fire alarms versus security alarms need to be 
clarified,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
SECTION 1.  That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 26, Article II, is amended as follows [new 
text is in bold/underlined font; deleted text is in strike out font]:     

 
DIVISION 2.  PERMIT 

 
Sec. 26-51. Private connection permit. 
 
  (a) ConnectionRequired.  A person having a private fire or security alarm 
system may connect the alarm system to the city alarm circuit Fairbanks 
Emergency Communication Center (FECC) upon obtaining a permit for the 
connection from the FECC Manager director of public safety.   
 
  (b) Application.  Any person owning or possessing an alarm shall, within 48 
hours of installation, Fire and security alarm connection permits may be 
obtained by submitting an application to the department of public safety 
FECCfor an alarm permit.  The application shall requiremust include the identity 
of the owner, location of the alarm, and the name and telephone number of the 
person responsible for the alarm.   
 
  (c) Standards.  The director of public safety shall issue aA connection permit for 
the connection may be issued if the alarm system for which a permit is 
soughtit is found that the connection:   
 

(1) Will beIs compatible with the cityFECC alarm circuit or 
monitoring system; 

 
(2) Will connect an adequate andIs/will be properly installed and 

maintained private alarm system; and 
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 74 of 93



Ordinance No. 5888 
Page 2 of 6 

 

(3) Will substantially benefit the city fire prevention and police 
procedures.   

 
  (d) Restrictions.  The permit may be issued subject to reasonable requirements, 
terms and conditions as the director of public safetyFire Chief, Police Chief or 
FECC Manager may requireto provide the connection of an adequate private 
system and to maintain the permit standards.   
 
  (e) Currency of information.  Any person owning an fire or security alarm shall 
be under a continuing obligation to keep the information on its application current 
by prompt notification to the department of public safetyFECC of any change 
within no later than five business days of such change.   
 
  (f) Revocation.  A permit may be revoked by the mayor for noncompliance with 
the permits standards and restrictions.  Regardless of any other provision of this 
section, the permit may be revoked by the city council at any time if the city 
council in its discretion finds that the disconnection of the private security alarm 
system is in the best interests of the city, and Tthe prior granting of the permit or 
the expenditure of fundsmoneys by the permit holder in reliance on the permit 
shall not create any vested rights in the permit holder or any estoppel against the 
city.  Notice of the revocation shall be made by a police or fire official in 
person or in a writing mailed to the address listed on the permit. 
 
Sec. 26-52. Permit display; sStreet address; messages. 
 
  (a) A permit issued under this division shall be displayed at or near the main 
entrance of the permitted location with the permit number clearly visible and 
readable from the exterior of the premises.   
 
  (ab) The permittee shall have a clearly visible its street address number, 
displayed in contrasting colors, clearly visible from the streetat or near the 
front the premises and at other places where access is available. 
 
  (bc) All alarm system messages to the FECC department of public safety shall 
must include the permit number except as exempted by the FECC department of 
public safety.   
 
Sec. 26-53. Connection.   
 
  The permit holder shall pay the city for the cost of the initial hookup.  The 
permit holder shall provide, install, and maintain hisits own privatefire or 
security alarm system up to but not including the alarm console circuits, all 
without expense to the city.  The maintenance of the private system must be by a 
qualified person approved by the director of public safety engaged in the business 
of installing and maintaining a supervisory fire alarm system who shall use Pacitic 
Fire Rating Bureau and National Fire Protection Association standards.   

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 75 of 93



Ordinance No. 5888 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 
 
 
Sec. 26-53.1.  Installation/Maintenance – Fire Alarms. 
 
The installation and maintenance of a fire alarm system must be by a 
qualified person who holds a permit issued by the State Fire Marshal’s Office 
and meets the standards set out in NFPA 72 (National Fire Protection 
Association).  
 
Sec. 26-53.2.  Installation/Maintenance – Security Alarms. 
 
The installation and maintenance of a security alarm system must be by a 
qualified person using recognized installation practices. 
 
Sec. 26-54. Disconnection of system. 
 
  It shall be unlawful for any person, except a person authorized by the Fire 
Chief, Police Chief, or FECC Managerdirector of public safety to connect or 
disconnect, temporarily or otherwise, a privatefire or security alarm system, or 
other wires or conduits, to a city alarm system from the FECC.  
 
Sec. 26-55. Fees.   
 
  The permit holder shall pay a fee to the city for the connection of the privatefire 
or security alarm system to the city alarm monitoring system and a monthly 
circuit usemonitoring fee.  Fees for this service will be set forth in the city 
schedule of fees and charges for services.   
 

DIVISION 3.  FALSE/NUISANCE ALARMS 
 

Sec. 26-76. Definitions.   
 
  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have 
the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly 
indicates a different meaning:   
 
  Alarm means any operable assembly of equipment and devices or a single 
device, except an official municipal fire or police alarm, but including without 
limitation automatic dialing devices which telephone a prerecorded message or 
transmit a signal or message to the FECC department of public safety and devices 
that produce an audible or visible signal which is intended to alert the police or 
some other person that a criminal act, fire or other emergency exists and requires 
assistance.  Devices commonly known as single-station smoke alarms intended 
primarily for private residential use and designed to emit a local signal from the 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 76 of 93



Ordinance No. 5888 
Page 4 of 6 

 

device upon the detection of smoke, fumes or heat shall not be considered alarms 
for purposes of this article.    
 
  False/Nuisance alarm means an alarm signal that the Police Chief, Fire Chief, 
or FECC Manager director of public safety determines wais caused by a reason 
other than (1) theat condition which the alarm is designed or intended to detect or 
(2) by a natural phenomenon beyond the control of the owner.   
 
  Owner means any person responsible for the proper operation of an alarm and in 
possession of a permit issued by the director of public safety.   
 
Sec. 26-77. Prohibited acts.   
 
  It shall be unlawful for any person to: 
 

(1) Intentionally cause, permit or allow a false/nuisance alarm signal 
to be emitted from an alarm.   

 
(2) Own, install, connect, operate or possess an alarm except as 

provided under this article.  
 
(23) Own, operate, connect, install or possess an audible security alarm 

unless that alarm automatically ceases to emit an audible sound 
after 15 minutes and does not repeat the audible sound thereafter.   

 
(34) Own, operate, connect, install or possess an audible alarm system 

that emits a sound similar to that of any civil defense warning 
system.   

 
(45) Operate or use a robbery alarm system for any purpose other than 

detecting and reporting robberies or other crimes involving 
potential serious bodily injury or death. 

 
(56) Operate or use a burglary system for any other purpose other than 

detecting and reporting an unauthorized entry upon the premises 
protected by such system.   

 
(67) Operate or use an alarm system which has been disapproved by the 

Police Chief, Fire Chief, or FECC Managerdepartment of public 
safety.   

 
(78) Install, connect, own or possess an automatic direct dial alarm or 

any alarm device in such a fashion as to ring any telephone number 
at the police department, fire department or FECCof public 
safety.   

 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 77 of 93



Ordinance No. 5888 
Page 5 of 6 

 

(89) Fail to cooperate with employees of the police and fire 
departments or the FECC of public safety when the permittee’s 
alarm system is the subject of an official investigation.   

 
Sec. 26-78. Alarm response.   
 
  Any person in possession of a permit issuedrequired pursuant to division 2 of 
this article shall respond to an alarm activation at its premises as soon as possible 
after being requested to do so by the police department or fire department of 
public safety officials at the scene or by the FECC.  Officials will not be required 
to stand by pending arrival of the permittee.   
 
Sec. 26-79. False/nuisance alarm service charge.   
 
  (a) The owner of an alarm is subject toshall pay a progressive false/nuisance 
alarm charge in accordance with the city schedule of fees and charges for 
services.   
 
Sec. 26-80. Permit revocation.   
 
  (a) The Police Chief, Fire Chief or FECC Manager director of public safety 
may revoke a permit issued pursuant to division 2 of this article if: 
 
 (1) Service charges are not paid within 60 days of the billing date. 
 
 (2) False/nuisance alarms exceed ten within a 12-month period. 
 
 (3) The owner has violated any provisions of this article.   
 
  (b) Police and fire response for security alarms may be terminated to any 
location without a valid permit or at which the permit has been revoked.   
 
  (c) A permit revocation or a response termination made under this section may 
be appealed to the mayor within 15 days from the time written notice of 
revocation is received by the permittee.  The appeal must be in writing and clearly 
state what action has been taken to correct the situation.  Written notice of 
revocation shall be deemed received when delivered to the permittee personally or 
upon proof of mail delivery.   
 
Sec. 26-81. Service charge reversal.   
 
  The Police Chief, Fire Chief, or FECC Manager director of public safety shall 
reverse any service charge when a determination is made that such charge was 
erroneously made or upon verifiable evidence submitted by the permittee within 
30 days of the alarm debt that a crime or fire didhas occurred.  Reversal of the 
service charge may also be made at the discretion of the Police Chief, Fire 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 78 of 93



Ordinance No. 5888 
Page 6 of 6 

 

Chief, or FECC Manager if the cause of the alarm was outside the control of 
the permittee.  The decision of the Police Chief, Fire Chief or FECC Manager 
director of public safety may be appealed to the mayor within 15 days of notice 
by the director of public safety of denial of a service charge reversal request.   

 
 

Section 2. That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the _____ day of August 2012. 
 
 
             
       Jerry Cleworth, City Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, City Clerk    Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 79 of 93



Sponsored by: Mayor Cleworth  
Introduced: July 23, 2012 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5889 
 

AN ORDINANCE SEEKING VOTER APPROVAL FOR THE CITY TO ACCEPT 
A PASS-THROUGH LOAN FROM THE ALASKA CLEAN WATER FUND TO 
GOLDEN HEART UTILITIES OF UP TO $4.6256 MILLION FOR A SLUDGE 
DEWATERING PROJECT, UP TO $650,623 FOR A CLARIFIER PROJECT, 
AND RATIFYING A LOAN OF $637,830 FOR PRIOR IMPROVEMENTS AT 

THE CITY OWNED WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY 
 

 WHEREAS, in 1997 the City sold its utility system to a consortium of buyers in 
exchange for $87.5 million in cash, payoff of $47.6 million in utility debt and other 
consideration; of the total proceeds, the City received $2 million cash from the water/wastewater 
purchasers; and  
 
 WHEREAS, since the sale, the Peger Road wastewater treatment plant has been operated 
by Golden Heart Utilities (“GHU”) under the terms of a lease-purchase agreement paying 
$33,075 per month to the City Permanent Fund; to-date the City has received over $5.6 million 
in lease payments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, GHU has not exercised its option to purchase the treatment plant, opting to 
continue leasing the facility from the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as owner of the wastewater treatment plant, the City is eligible to borrow 
money at a low interest rate (1.5%) from the Alaska Clean Water Fund (“ACWF”), a fund 
administered by the State of Alaska, Department of Environmental Conservation, to assist 
eligible recipients in wastewater treatment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a component of the plant known as the sludge dewatering system is nearing 
the end of its useful life, and GHU proposes to replace the current system with a new, upgraded 
dewatering facility.  The new dewatering facility would be in its own building, which would 
reduce the air handling requirements on the main plant.  The new facility would increase the 
amount of water removed from the sludge, thereby reducing the total sludge volume and the 
plant’s operating expenses; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the total cost of this project is $4.6256 million, and the City is eligible to 
borrow up to that amount from the ACWF with repayment over 15 years at 1.5% interest; the 
City has applied for a project grant of $2,775,360.00 that would reduce the amount of the loan 
accordingly; and 
 
 WHEREAS, loan proceeds would be passed through to GHU, and GHU would be 
responsible for repayment of the loan; and  
 
 WHEREAS, all costs incurred by GHU during the construction of the project will be 
submitted to the City for approval and payment; and 
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 80 of 93



Ordinance No. 5889 
Page 2 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and GHU have entered into the attached  agreement whereby GHU 
provided assurances and remedies to protect the City from having to repay the loan; as part of the 
agreement, GHU would pay a loan origination fee of 0.5% of the actual loan amount to the City 
at loan inception, pay the full cost of City employee wage and overhead for time spent 
administering loans and grants, provide an annual financial audit as required by the City, and 
obtain a loan repayment guarantee from GHU’s parent company, Fairbanks Sewer and Water, 
Inc.; and  
 
 WHEREAS, building this project with funds from a low interest loan from the ACWF 
will reduce the total cost of the project and will ultimately be a benefit to GHU’s rate payers as 
follows:  without any grant funds and using conventional financing, the project would result in 
an approximate rate increase of 2.89%.  With the maximum grant funds and 1.5% loan, the 
project’s approximate rate increase would be 0.56%; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in addition to the sludge dewatering project, GHU proposes to rehabilitate 
the plant clarifier at a total project cost of $1,626,558; a grant of $975,935 has been awarded, and 
a 1.5% pass-through ACWF loan of $650,623 is available; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City previously accepted a pass through loan from the State to improve 
the wastewater treatment plant by the installation of a sodium hypochlorite system to replace the 
use of dangerous chlorine gas.  The current balance of the loan is $637,830.  While voter 
approval of that loan should have been obtained previously, the voters have the chance now to 
ratify the loan so that ratepayers benefit from the low interest rate.  If not ratified, the loan will 
need to be re-financed at higher rates. 
 
 WHEREAS, this ordinance does not take effect until it is ratified by a vote of eligible 
city voters, 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
Section 1.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to 
 

 (a)  execute any documents necessary to apply for and accept loans through the ACWF 
for up to $4.6256 million for the wastewater treatment plant sludge dewatering plant project and 
up to $650,623 for the clarifier project, and 

 
(b) enter into the attached agreement with Golden Heart Utilities regarding the terms and 

conditions for repayment of the sludge dewatering loan and ratification of the 2008 sodium 
hypochlorite project loan.   
 
Section 2.  The City Clerk is directed to put this ordinance on the ballot for ratification by the 
voters of the City of Fairbanks at the 2012 general election. 
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 81 of 93



Ordinance No. 5889 
Page 3 

 

Proposition __: 
 
INFORMATION:  In 1997, the City sold its utility system to a consortium of buyers in 
exchange for $87.5 million in cash, payoff of $47.6 million in utility debt and other 
consideration; of the total proceeds, the City received $2 million from the water/wastewater 
purchasers.  As part of the overall utility sale, the Peger Road wastewater treatment plant has 
been operated by Golden Heart Utilities (“GHU”) subject to a lease-purchase agreement paying 
$33,075 per month to the City Permanent Fund.  GHU has not exercised its option to purchase 
the treatment plant, opting to continue leasing the facility from the City.  Over $5.6 million has 
been received in lease payments to date.   
 
The City is eligible to borrow funds from the Alaska Clean Water Fund at 1.5% interest and 
proposes to borrow $4.6256 million for the sludge dewatering system replacement project.    
GHU has agreed to repay this loan and interest in full, plus pay the City a 0.5% loan origination 
fee and other costs.  If successful in obtaining grants to offset the loan amount, GHU estimates 
that ratepayers will see an increase of approximately 0.56% to pay for this project.  Using 
conventional financing sources, the increase would be approximately 2.89%.   
 
In addition to the sludge dewatering project, an ACWF loan of up to $650,623 at 1.5% interest 
for a plant clarifier is available to complete the project.  GHU has agreed to repay this loan and 
interest in full, plus pay the City a 0.5% loan origination fee and other costs. 
 
In addition, a loan for a prior wastewater improvement project, the installation of a sodium 
hypochlorite system, with a current balance of $637,830, was not approved in advance by the 
City voters.  Ratification of the loan at this time will allow GHU ratepayers to continue the 
benefit of the 1.5% low interest loan.  
 
Ballot Question No ___: 
 

Should City of Fairbanks Ordinance No. 5889 be ratified?   
 
A “yes” vote ratifies Ordinance No. 5889, which would authorize the Mayor to enter 
into agreements with the State of Alaska and Golden Heart Utilities to borrow up to 
$4,625,600.00 at 1.5% interest to construct a sludge dewatering system at the Peger 
Road Wastewater Treatment Plant and to borrow up to $650,623.00 at 1.5% interest  for 
the  clarifier system project at the Wastewater Treatment Plant, both loans to be paid in 
full by Golden Heart Utilities, and which would ratify the 2008 loan (current balance of 
$637,830.00) for construction of the sodium hypochlorite system at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant.   
 
A “no” vote rejects Ordinance No. 5889.   
 

 
YES    
 
NO    

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 82 of 93



Ordinance No. 5889 
Page 4 

 

Section 3.  That this ordinance was passed by this Council on the ____ day of August, 2012 but 
will not become effective until ratified by the voters of the City of Fairbanks.   
 
 
             
       Jerry Cleworth, City Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED: 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk   Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 83 of 93



 LOAN REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
  

BETWEEN 
 

City of Fairbanks, Alaska 
 

And 
 

Golden Heart Utilities, Inc. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 Whereas, the Wastewater Treatment Plant, located at 4247 Peger Road, Fairbanks, 
Alaska, is owned by the City of Fairbanks and leased and operated by Golden Heart Utilities, 
Inc., and more particularly described on attached “EXHIBIT A”; and 
 
 Whereas, the City of Fairbanks has applied for a loan from the Alaska Clean Water Fund 
FY12 in the amount of $4,625,600, with an interest rate of 1.5 percent; and  
 
 Whereas, the loan proceeds would be passed on to Golden Heart Utilities, Inc., and used 
to fund Alaska Clean Water Fund Project Number 339091, which would demolish the current 
sludge dewatering system, which is nearing the end of its useful life, and replace it with new 
dewatering facilities, equipment and mixing trucks; and 
 
 Whereas, this upgrade to the Wastewater Treatment Plant will increase its efficiency and 
extend the life of the Plant; and 
 
 Whereas, financing this project by way of a low-interest loan from the Alaska Clean 
Water Fund will reduce the cost of the project which will ultimately benefit water and sewer rate 
payers; and 
 
 Whereas, this project is also eligible for grant funds through the State of Alaska, which 
could reduce the amount of loan by as much as $2.77536 million; and 
 
 Whereas, under the terms of this Loan Reimbursement Agreement, Golden Heart 
Utilities, Inc., will be responsible for repayment of the loan proceeds; and 
 
 Whereas, in addition to other assurances set out below, Golden Heart Utilities’ parent 
company, Fairbanks Sewer and Water, Inc., will guarantee the repayment of the loan.  
 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
  

1. Golden Heart Utilities, Inc. (“GHU”), whose address is 3691 Cameron Street, 

#201, Fairbanks, Alaska, 99709, promises to pay to the order of the City of Fairbanks (“the 

City”), whose address is 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, 99701, the principal sum of 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 84 of 93



Loan Reimbursement Agreement 
Page 2 of 8 

 

FOUR MILLION, SIX HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND, SIX HUNDRED and 

00/100 DOLLARS ($4,625,600.00), representing the loan proceeds from the Alaska Clean Water 

Fund FY12 loan for Project Number 339091 received by the City, together with interest on the 

unpaid balance from time to time remaining, accruing at the rate of ONE AND ONE HALF 

PERCENT (1.5%) per annum, compounded monthly on the balance remaining from time to time 

unpaid.  The principal and interest shall be payable to the City at 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, 

Alaska, 99701 or at such other place as the City shall designate in writing, in annual installments 

of approximately THREE HUNDRED FORTY-SIX THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED SIXTY-

THREE and 00/100 DOLLARS ($346,663. 00), with the exact amount of the annual payment to 

be determined by the State of Alaska.  The first payment will be due on the ___ day of ________ 

201____.  Subsequent annual loan payments by GHU to the City will be due six months before 

the date that the yearly payment is due and owing to the State of Alaska and shall continue on the 

same basis until such time as the principal and interest are paid in full.  GHU has the right to 

prepay the annual payment or the entire loan balance at anytime without penalty. 

2. GHU agrees to pay to the City a loan origination fee of 0.5% of the loan amount, 

due and payable at the time the loan proceeds are received by the City and agrees to pay the full 

cost of City employee wage and overhead, in the same manner as currently calculated by the 

Alaska State Department of Transportation & Public Facilities for engineering reimbursement 

and subject to upward annual adjustments, for any time spent administering the ACWF loan, this 

loan repayment agreement, or any grants associated with this project.   

3. GHU shall comply with all present and future contractual requirements of the 

contract between the City and the State Department of Environmental Conservation for Project 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 85 of 93



Loan Reimbursement Agreement 
Page 3 of 8 

 

#339091, including any demand for loan repayment in full by the State in the event of violation 

of the terms of the loan or for any other reason, as well as any regulatory requirements of the 

State of Alaska regarding use of these loan funds.   

4. Any and all structures and/or equipment constructed or purchased as part of 

Project Number 339091 with funds from the above-referenced Loan will not be considered 

“betterments or improvements” under the terms of the Lease Agreement between the City and 

GHU dated October 6, 1997, and will remain the property of the City.   

5. GHU shall list the City as a lienholder on the title of any equipment or vehicles 

purchased with funds from the loan that are required to be registered under the laws of the State 

of Alaska, and GHU further agrees that the City will have the right to secure its interest in all 

property acquired with loan proceeds by any legal means available.   

6. In the event of partial prepayment of this obligation, the payment funds will be 

applied towards the satisfaction of those payments next falling due hereunder.  Payment proceeds 

will be applied first to the satisfaction of accrued interest up to the actual date of such payment, 

with the excess to be applied in reduction of outstanding principal.  

7. In the event that any payment falling due hereunder is not paid within thirty (30) 

days after the due date thereof, the City may, at any time while such delinquency continues, 

declare the entire unpaid balance of this obligation, to include the outstanding principal balance, 

accrued interest, and all other amounts payable, immediately due and owing.  Each party signing 

or endorsing this Agreement hereby waives presentment, demand, protest and notice of non-

payment.   

8. GHU agrees to execute an assignment of income to secure repayment of loan 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 86 of 93



Loan Reimbursement Agreement 
Page 4 of 8 

 

funds due under this agreement, to become effective in the case of a default as described in the 

above paragraph.   

 9. The City may delay or forgo enforcing any of its rights or remedies under this 

Agreement without losing them.  GHU and any other person who signs or endorses this 

Agreement, to the extent allowed by law, waive presentment, demand for payment, protest and 

notice of default.   

 10. GHU may not assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations under this 

Agreement without the express written consent of the City.  Should GHU exercise its purchase 

option under the Lease Agreement between the City and GHU dated October 6, 1997, the City 

has the right to declare the entire unpaid balance of GHU’s obligation, to include the outstanding 

principal balance, accrued interest, and all other amounts payable, immediately due and owing.   

 11. GHU shall indemnify, defend, protect, and hold the City and each of the City’s 

employees, officers and agents free and harmless from and against any and all claims liabilities, 

penalties, losses, or expenses (including attorney’s fees) or death of or injury to any person or 

damage to any property whatsoever, arising from or caused in whole or part, directly or 

indirectly, by GHU’s undertaking in regards to Project Number 339091 or in regards to this 

Agreement.   

 12. By signing below, GHU’s parent, Fairbanks Sewer and Water, Inc., agrees to 

guarantee the loan repayment obligations of GHU in the event of default by GHU.   

 13. The benefits of this Agreement shall inure to and the burdens shall be binding 

upon the lawful successors and assigns of the respective parties.   

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 87 of 93



Loan Reimbursement Agreement 
Page 5 of 8 

 

 14. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Alaska, with all disputes over the terms of this agreement to be adjudicated by the 

Alaska Superior Court, Fourth Judicial District, Fairbanks, Alaska.   

THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS 
 
 
Date: ________    _______________________________ 

By: Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
 
 
State of Alaska  ) 
    ) ss  ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
Fourth Judicial District ) 
 
 THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this                day of                          2012, before me, the 
undersigned, a NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared Jerry 
Cleworth, the Mayor of the City of Fairbanks, and that he acknowledged before me that he 
executed the same on behalf of said City with authority so to do.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, my hand and official seal.  
 
      _________________________________                                         
      Notary Public for the State of Alaska 
      My Commission Expires: ____________  
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 88 of 93



Loan Reimbursement Agreement 
Page 6 of 8 

 

 
 
 

GOLDEN HEART UTILITIES, INC. 
 
 
 

Date: ________    ________________________________ 
By:  ____________________ 
Its: President  

 
 
 
State of Alaska  ) 
    ) ss  ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
Fourth Judicial District ) 
 
 THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this                day of                          2012, before me, the 
undersigned, a NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared 
______________________, the President of Golden Heart Utilities, Inc., and that she/he 
acknowledged before me that she/he executed the same on behalf of said corporation with 
authority so to do.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, my hand and official seal.  
 
 
      _________________________________                                         
      Notary Public for the State of Alaska 
      My Commission Expires: ____________  
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 89 of 93



Loan Reimbursement Agreement 
Page 7 of 8 

 

 
FAIRBANKS SEWER AND WATER, INC.  

 
 
 
Date: ________    ________________________________ 

By: ________________________ 
Its: __________________  

 
 
 
State of Alaska  ) 
    ) ss  ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
Fourth Judicial District ) 
 
 THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this                day of                          2012, before me, the 
undersigned, a NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared 
___________________________, the President of Fairbanks Sewer and Water, Inc., and that 
she/he acknowledged before me that she/he executed the same on behalf of said corporation with 
authority so to do.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, my hand and official seal.  
 
 
 
      _________________________________                                         
      Notary Public for the State of Alaska 
      My Commission Expires: ____________  
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 90 of 93



Loan Reimbursement Agreement 
Page 8 of 8 

 

“EXHIBIT A” 
 
A tract of ground described by three separate deeds filed in the Fairbanks District Recorder’s 
Office in Book 272 at Page 647, and in Book 380 at Page 688, and in Book 275 at Page 349, 
situated within the NW ¼ of the W ¼ and Government Lot 1, Section 28, T.1S., R.1W., 
Fairbanks Meridian, consolidated below without changing the intent of any of three said deeds, 
and more particularly described as follow:  
Commencing at the Section corner common the Sections 20, 21, 28 and 29, T.1S., R.1W. F.M.; 
thence southerly 990 feet along the section line common to Sections 28 and 29 T.1S., R.1W. 
F.M. to the S-N-N 1/256 corner common to Sections 28 and 29 T.1S., R.1W. F.M, the TRUE 
POINT OF BEGINNING of this consolidation of descriptions of a contiguous tract; thence 
easterly 330 feet to the SW-NW-NW 1/256 corner of Section 28, T.1S., R.1W. F.M.; thence 
northerly 330 feet to the CW-NW-NW 1/256 corner of Section 28, T.1S., R.1W. F.M.; thence 
continuing along the northerly extension of the same line 30.00 feet to a point; thence easterly 
990 feet to a point on the westernmost north-south 1/16 line of Section 28 T.1S., R.1W. F.M.; 
thence southerly 30.00 feet along the westernmost 1/16 line of Section 28 T.1S., R.1W. F.M., to 
the C-N-NW 1/64 corner on the westernmost N-S line of Section 28 T.1S., R.1W. F.M; thence 
southerly 660 feet along the westernmost N-S 1/16 line to the NW 1/16 corner of Section 28 
T.1S., R.1W. F.M.; thence continuing along the southerly extension of the same line 102.63 feet 
to a point lying offset 100.00 feet north of the centerline of the Chena Lakes Flood Control 
Project; thence South 82° 42’ 37” West parallel to and offset 100.00 feet north of said centerline 
a distance of 814.57 feet to ta point; thence continuing parallel and offset 100.00 feet north of 
said centerline along a tangent curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 1809.86 feet and a 
delta angle of 16° 14’ 40” through an arc length of 513.13 feet to a point on the section line 
common to Sections 28 and 29, T.1S., R.1W. F.M.; thence northerly along said section line to 
the S-N-N 1/256 corner common to sections 28 and 29, T.1S., R.1W. F.M., the TRUE POINT 
OF BEGINNING of this consolidated description of a contiguous tract, said description 
containing and area of 23.6 acres, more or less.  
 

AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 91 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 92 of 93



AGENDA PACKET - July 23, 2012 Page 93 of 93


	AGENDA - July 23, 2012
	MINUTES
	Regular Meeting of July 9, 2012

	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Transfer - Gallantino's
	Transfer - Southern Wine -Wells St. 
	Transfer - Southern Wine-Peger Rd

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5886
	Ordinance No. 5887

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4536
	Resolution No. 4537
	Resolution No. 4538
	Resolution No. 4539
	Ordinance No. 5888
	Ordinance No. 5889

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	LID Ad Hoc Minutes - 06/29/2012 
	LID Ad Hoc Minutes - 07/09/2012




